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794 Case of Messrs. [ASSEMBLY.] Wildaslb and Hutchison. 

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. 
Friday, 30 September, 1881. 

Case of )leRsrs. \rildash and Untehison.- Selectors 
Relief BilL-Opening of the :\Iu::;eum on Sundas~. 

The SPEAKER took the chair at half-past 
10 o'clock. 

CASE 01!' l\IERSRS. WILDASH AND 
HUTCHISON. 

Mr. O'S"GLLTVAX said the motion standing in 
his name was founded upon a petition that was 
presented to the House about two years ago by 
JI!Ir. iYiacdonald-Paterson, the hon. member for 
Rockhampton. It was presented on the 9th nf 
September, 1R79, but that gentleman was so busy 
that all that could be done wns to present it. The 
next year a great deal of work fell on the shoul­
ders of the hon. member for Rockhamptnn, 
and he left the petition in the hands of the 
hon. member for Hosewood (Mr. Meston), who 
applied on the 23rd September for a com­
mittee of the House to report upon the peti­
tion of Messrs. "\Vildash and Hutchison. The 
committee was granted on the 23rd of Sep­
tember, and brought up its revort on the 
5th J'\ovember, and during the present SP"sion 
l\Ir. Meston founded a motion on it ; but before 
the motion came on that hon. gentleman had to 
leave the House for Cooktown. It appeared as 
if some misfortune had attended the petition 
from the very day it was presented, which was 
over ~wo years ago. It \vas a very old Raying 
that rt was better to be born lucky than rich ; 
r,.nd bad luck had followed the petitioner from 
the day lw came into the colony. He thought 
it was hardly possible to find in the history of 
any of the colonies such a run of bad luck as 
Mr. "\Vildash had had since he came into the 
colony. 1 t was through those circumAtances that 
the affair had fallen into his (l\lr. O'Sullivan's) 
hands; and, to make the ill-luck still worse, it 
had fallen into the hands of the man least 
able to do it justice ; and, ulso, it had now 
come up on a Friday morning. So that all 
the circumstances being put together, the peti­
tioner had had as long a run of bad luck a' any 
person conld have. The matter had been so long 
before the country that he took it for granted 
that hon. members knew all about it, and the 
petition had been laid on the table so long a time, 
and had been so often referred to by the Press, that 

it was pretty generally known throughout the 
colony how the matter really stood. At a short, 
early sitting like the present, he was not aware that 
he would be able to go into the matter very fully. 
At the best of times he could do it very little 
justice, but for all that, it was a very easy case 
when it was understood. The circumstances 
were briefly these : :JYfr. \Vildash came to pur­
cha;e Canning Downs Hun, which was held by 
a lessee under the old Orders-in-CouncilofMarch 
1847. That lease was very nearly out, and 
before :JYir. "\Vildash completed the purchase he 
applied to the Minister of the day to know if 
the lease would be renewed ; otherwise, of 
cour~e, he should not purchase it. It was that 
gentleman's intention, if the lease was not 
renewed, to leave the colony and go home to 
England or somewhere else. .A five years' 
renewal was promised to Mr. \Vrldash-guaran­
teed to him-in fact, an emphatic promise was 
given to him, and on the strength of that promise 
he purchased the property. No man in the 
world would be so mad as to purchase such an 
immense property or go to such an immense 
outlay on it without a lease. At any rate, the 
lease was accordingly promised in 1865. The 
fourteen years' lease, under the old Orders-in­
Council, expired on the 31st December, 1865. 
It was before the expiration of that lease that 
this sale and purchase was effected, and, as he 
had already stated, a promise was given that the 
lease should be renewed. On the strength of that 
promise the property was purchased ; otherwise it 
would never have been purchased. J'\ow, he 
took it that the whole case, and all the hardship 
and misery that followed, depended upon the 
fulfilment (,f that promise ; and, carried away by 
that promise, and relying confidently upon it, 
Mr. Wildash purchased Canning Downs. But, 
so far from the Government carrying ont that 
promise, after the purchase had been made-in 
the following year-the whole of the Darling 
Downs was proclaimed an agricultural reserve, 
and the v:tlue of the property was destroyed in 
"moment. Shortly after, in1867, a proclamation 
was made under the Leasing Act of 1866 that 
the country might be taken up before survey, so 
that, in reality, all the grazing property of the 
petitioner was de~troyed. He might say that 
the Government first gave Mr. \Vildash, at the 
purchase of Canning Downs, a large amount of 
itbout 27,000 acres of freehold and about 250 
RrJ1lare miles of country. The whole of the 250 
miles nf country was, however, destroyed by 
the proclamation that the leasehold land was 
thrown open for selection. If that promise had 
not been made to l\Ir. "\Vildash it would be 
impossible for the proclamation to have done 
him a greo.t deal of injury, as that gentleman 
would have been prepared to purchase the land 
to secure himself against selection. Seeing that 
his property was swallowed up in that way, 
of course, to secure himself, those transactions 
took place afterwards in the buying up of lands 
and selections, called, in fact, "dummying." 
That was done on the station of Canning I> owns 
in common with all the other stations on the Dar­
ling Downs to which leases had not been given or 
renewed. Hemightsaythat, although Mr. \Vild­
ash's lease was not renewed for Canning Downs, 
simil>tr leases for five years were granted to other 
leaseholders on the Darling Downs, although he 
was actually promised that the lease would be 
renewed. it was clearly proved by the evidence 
of two of the highest State officer; in the colony 
that those leases were actually made out by order 
of Executive minute, and that some of them had 
actually been handed over to the owners of runs 
who held under the old Orders-in-Conncil as soon 
as their leases had run out. "\Vhen the Canning 
Downs Run was thrown open for selection it was 
taken up by a great many selectors. Mr. Wildash 
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and his firm, to secure themselves, purchased a lot 
of those selections, and did so with the knowlerlge 
and consent of the Government; and their tranfers 
were not private transfers, but public transfers 
authorised and recorded by the Government in 
their own office. Still, when those purchases were 
made, the Government refused to give the title 
deeds, under the plea that sufficient improve­
ments were not made. And that was done, 
although there was no instance on record in the 
colony where forfeiture:' had ever taken place 
for the non-fulfilment of conditions as to im­
provements, although there were records in the 
colony of forfeitures being made for non-pay­
ment of rent ; so they might see that all the 
Government wanted was the rent, and they got 
it. In purchasing those selections the firm of 
\Vildash and Hutchison paid every shilling of 
the purchase-money for the selections and in 
improvements, something over £3,000 more than 
was required by the Government; so that in every 
step he took Mr. \Vildash found himself outwitted 
and'cheated by the Government of the day. He 
believed that really was the whole case as described 
in the report, and as supported by the evidence 
given before the Select Com~ittee. He believed 
the whole sum and substance of it was contained 
in that much. \Vhen the estate became of less 
value than it was when first bought, of course 
immense exertions were made to keep its value 
up and to keep the mortgagees from foreclosing 
upon Mr. \Yildash and his firm, which they 
would never have done if the promise made by 
the Government was carried out, because in 
that case the value of the property would be 
kept up. To purchase these selections, and 
make the property still valuable in the eyes of 
the trustees, more money had to be found, and 
aboat £29,000 was spent in improvements. And 
to do that, and keep up appearances, and save 
the property, his two stepsons threw the whole 
of their fortunes into the concern, with an 
amount of filial affection that perhaps deserved 
a greater reward ; but it only resulted in their 
fortunes being swallowed up with the rest. 
"\Vhen the mortgagees found that the title deeds 
were not to be given to Mr. \Vildash and his 
firm, although they were given to others at 
the same time, they foreclosed, and the pro­
perty was sold for about £90,000. \Vhen it 
became known that the property was to he 
sold two firms each offered a large amount of 
money for it. One firm offered £120,000 for it ; 
and l\Iessrs. Simms and Chapman offered 
£124,000, and the petitioner and many others 
concerned in the case felt and said that evrn that 
would have been a forced sale, because if they 
had got their deeds from the Government the pro­
perty would have been worth £150,000, and they 
considered thev would have been able to realise 
that sum. In a stmggling way he (Mr. 0 ~ullivan) 
had told almost the whole tale, and there was 
evidence to show that ruin was brought upon the 
Wildash family through the recklessness of the 
Government of the day. Hon. members should 
remember that what was l\Ir. "\Vildash's case then 
might be any other gentleman's case to-morrow. 
He comidered private individuals had rights as 
well as Governments, and a promise of that kind 
of granting a magnificent estate-and that where 
the estate was exhibited to the view of the person, 
and he was bv that exhibition and in view of 
that promise "induced to invest an immense 
amount of money, the Government should not 
be allowed by reckle.,sness, misadministration, 
or revenge, to play in that kind of style with a 
man's family and leave him and them penniless 
in the world. He had said when he began 
that the Press of the colonv h~td taken the matter 
up, and certainly he had 'read some very able 
leading articles on the matter, in which the whole 
question was comprehensively grasped. He was 

looking at one of those lately, and, though he 
knew he was but a poor reader, if he did not 
detain the House too lon~ he would read a para­
graph or two from a leader which appeared in ~he 
Cow·in· of the 11th November last, and whwh 
very ably grasped the whole thing. He was sorry 
the morning was so short, because he would like 
to read the whole article. This was one part of 
it:-

" It m!Ly f:tirly be contended that the ]mblic interest 
is, or ought to be, the paramount consideration in the 
maldng of our laws. It 1nay with equal justice 1Je main­
tained that the FUblic interest is concerned in the 
administration of justice to any individual in the com­
mnn ty. The case before us shows what confusion nuty 
lJe caused by the inesolute manner in which the public 
estate has been administered, and the injury inflicted 
on individuals bv the manner in which those entrusted 
with its administration have allowed themselves to be 
influenc1::;d by the political exigencies of the mon1ent." 

He scarcely knew what part to le~ve out, because 
the whole article should appear. It went on :-

" 1Yhen \vealthier men tested the law, it was in reality 
decided that all persons similarly situated were entitled 
to their grants. He anc1 his family had the rwrry con~ 
solation of knowing this when the knowledge came too 
late. The propertv, with all the rights connected ''ith 
it, was sold, and they have the unfortunate ability to 
contemplate the loss of years of work, of large outlay 
and great perseverance, and a magnificent property 
taken out of their hands-taken because the very deeds 
hanc'led over to the fortunate 1mrchaser, when further 
delay became impo~sible, had been continually refused 
to them. If the Government of the colony had brcn 
responsible for the loss incurred hy :J.Ir. "~ildash only to 
the extent caused by the delay in the issue of his deeds, 
he would have a claim on the conntry. His case, even 
then, would have been rather <1 hard one, because he 
alone, of all who had acquired land in defiance of the 
Sl)irit of the law, would have suffered, while his more 
fortunate fellmv~ benefited by the blunder-the worse 
than blunder-which the Government of the day com­
mitted in continuing to receive these rents. But s?eing 
that he was originally driven to a desperate strmt by 
a breach of faith on the part of the Government, that 
under the pre,;;:Rln'e thus brought to bear upon him he 
followell what was then the general }}ractice of the 
Darlin~ Downs in order to IJrotect himself, and that all 
such offences 'vere condoned by those entrusted with 
the administration of the la,v-we conceive that he has 
a very good case for some such compensation as has 
been sug~ested by the Select Committee appointed to 
examine into his case." 

The ~elect Committee had examined two of the 
ablest officers of the Government-the former 
and present Surveyors-General, 1\lr. Gregory and 
:i\Ir. Tully-and there was no doubt at all in the 
minds of those two gentlemen that a breach of 
promi~e was committed, and that that breach 
of promise was the cause of the ruin of Mr. 
\Vildash. Under the circumstances the Com· 
mittee had no hesitation in coming to the con­
clusion that a grant of land should be made to 
the firm, but the blank in the recommendation 
was left open. There was, however, an agree­
ment or understanding come to on the part of a 
majority of the Committee, that at the very 
least the quantitv of land should be equal in 
value to the amount invested by the two young 
men-that was to say, 30,000 acres at 10s. an 
acre, which would be equal to £15,000. He would 
read the concluding paragraph of the report :-

"A large sum of money \Vas paid for t11e l)l'Operty upon 
an assumption, which seems to have been jm;tifiablcJ 
that the tenure would be continued, and then, within a 
few months, without notice, and without power of 
appmtl from the Act, the whole of the run properly so 
called was left open to all who chose to select from it; 
and the R-eenrity, and therefore the value of the pro­
}Jerty, was seriously depreciated. There can beo no 
doubt now that legally the petitioners were entitled to 
grants nfter receipt of the full rent from them. Actually 
thev state their expenditure on the land to have been 
muCh more in bulk than could have been required frmn 
them, or from anyone in detail; and they claiin that 
the action taken to acquire the freehold-which they 
might have got easily in the first instance had they 
thought the lease of the run would not have been re~ 
newed-was forced upon them by non-renewal; that 
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their procedure was within the limits imposed by la>< 
and that they substantially complied with the condi­
tions imposed. If the House should, upon consideration, 
determine that this c-Ontention is upheld by the evi~ 
deuce, there will remain the eonsideration of the redress 
to be accorded. In that case, your Committee think 
that the damage sustained would justify a grant of 

thousand acres of agricultural land to the peti­
tioner~. under conditions as to locality and area to be 
hereafter decided upon, and that an Act, to be primarily 
approved by the Government, should be passed to confer 
the necessary authority and embody the neces&<ary pro­
vi::dons.'' 

He could not conclude without saying thi.s much. 
When the decision in the case of Davenport 
became known to the colony he was positive the 
Minister for Lands in that case acted in the 
most straightforward manner in handing over 
the deeds to the owner. "\Vhatever suspicion 
there might have been about it, he thought that 
was what an honourable man should do, and 
there was no other alternative. It was exactly 
the same in this case ; the deeds should have 
been handed over to l\Ir. "\Vildash. However, 
he (Mr. O'Sullivan) was in the hands of the 
House, and would not take up any further 
time. He was sorry that the hon. member, Jlilr. 
l\Ieston, was not present to take charge of this 
motion, for he could have given it a better colour­
ing and a more poetic turn. He (Mr. O'Sullivan) 
harl done his best, and trusted to the sense of 
fair play of the House to do justice to those two 
young men who had sunk their all in the interests 
of their parents. They had not stood at the 
corner of the streets begging for a job, but 
after losing everything had gone hone3tly to 
work to still further help their parents if they 
could. "\Vith the permission of the House he 
wished to add the words " thirty thousand 
acres" after the word "land," on the 4th line. 
The motion would then read:-

1. That, in -view of the circumstances disclosed by 
the evidence taken before the Select Committee, 'vhich 
1'at la~t session on the Petition of li.Iessrs. 1Vildash and 
IIntchison, and in terms of the recommendation em­
bodied in the Report of that Committee, the House is of 
opinion that a Grant of Land, 30,000 acres, should be 
given to the Petitioners. 

2. That an Addrew.s be presented to the Governor, 
praying- that His :Excellency will be pleased to take the 
necessary measures to give eiiect to the foregoing reso­
lution. 

The PRE:MIEit said the hon. member who 
moved the motion had no necessity to disclaim 
so modestly his want of ability to put the case 
properly before the House; for the colouring he 
had given to the case had made it appear much 
better then it appeared in the report. In what 
he (the Premier) was about to say he should 
simply give utterance to his own private 
opinions, for the matter was not one that had 
been under the consideration of the Govern­
ment. It seemed from the report that the claim 
made on behalf of Messrs. "\Vildash and Hutchi­
son was founded on two things. J!'irst, that, 
before 1\lr. "\Vildash purchased Canning Downs 
Station in 18G5, he received certain infor­
mation from the Lands Office which turned 
out to be misleading information. He was in­
formed that when the l~ase fell in it would be 
renewed. That, however, was not done, for 
shortly after he had purchased the run it was 
thrown open as an agricultural reserve. The 
natural consequence was that the land was taken 
up by selectors, although, by some means or 
other, a large portion of it fell into the hands 
of Mr. "\Vildash. Through the action of the 
Government of the day, however, when the 
purchase money had been paid the deeds were 
not given to Mr. Wildash, and the property 
was consequently very much depreciated, and 
the money that he had borrowed on mortgage 
accumulated until it swamped the property and 
he was obliged to let it go. As soon as the next 

purchaser came in the Government granted the 
deeds, very much to the profit of the purchaser. 
That was the case as far as he understood it, and 
so far as it was disclosed by the report. He did 
not think that anybody would clarm, on behalf 
of Mr. Wi!dash, that if an intending purchaser 
of land went to the Commissioner of Lands and 
obtained information given in good faith which 
afterwards turned out to be wrong, therefore 
the Government should be made responsible. 
Mr. "\Vildash wished to buy the Canning Downs 
Station, and before doing so he went to the Com­
missioner of Lands, who told him that it was the 
intention of the Government to renew the lease. 
Afterwards, however, that intention was changed; 
a necessity arose for an agricultural reserve there, 
and the Government proclaimed it as such. Not 
the slightest attempt was made to prove that the 
Government of the day did not act perfectly right 
in making that reserve. That they acted legally 
in doing so was never questioned ; and, if that 
were so, how could they be bound in consequence 
of information that happened to be wrongly given 
by the Commissioner 1 The information was 
not wrong when it was given, for it really was 
the original intention of the Government to give 
a renewal. In cases of that kind the purchaser had 
to chance a great deal. If the Commissioner said 
to an intending purchaser that it was the intention 
of the Government to renew a lease, was it to be 
tal<en for granted that the Government assumed 
any responsibility, and was therefore bound to 
issue it 1 There was nothing to show that the Gov­
ernment did not act with perfect good faith to Mr. 
"\Vildash up to that time. To make the claim 
valid against the Government the whole of the 
evidence ought to be directed to prove that the 
action of the Government of the day was wrong. 
It was not proved that the Government were not 
perfectly right in withholding the deeds, and 
there was not a single word of evidence to prove 
that they were wrong in doing so. If that was 
pro1•ed it would materially alter the case, but 
there was no evidence directed to that point, 
and that was the point. The question was, 
were the Government justified, under the cir­
cumstances, in withholding the deeds 1 And 
there was no evidence to show that they 
were not perfectly justified. He did not 
assume that they were ; he simply said that the 
reverse had not been proved, and that was the 
point that ought to be established. The entire 
case lay in the sympathy they all felt for the 
misfortunes of Mr. Wildash and his family. 
They all knew that Mr. Wildash had been a 
most unfortunate inan, and it was more unfortu­
nate that his family had suffered also. But 
how, without violating all the principles of 
legislation, they would grant land to him on 
the facts shown in the report was a thing he 
could not understand. Was it to be said 
that ·a Government had no right to resume 
land for the purpose of throwing it open for 
agriculture or any other purpose under the 
Act ? They all knew perfectly well that that 
was done every day. Let hon. members 
consider for a moment what a number of 
claims this, if granted, would throw the Govern· 
ment open to. The lessees of all Crown land 
that had been resumed would have an equitable 
claim against the Government. J<'ar crueller 
things were done under the Railway Reserves 
Act, for not only were the leases taken 
away, but the whole of the land was sold by 
auction right under the le~.sees without the 
slightest compensation being given. It was im· 
possible to say how many claims would be made 
against the Government, if claims of that kind 
were to be listened to by the House. In what 
he had said, he had gone entirely on the facts as 
he knew them, and as they were disclosed by 
the evidence; and he did not think that any case 
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whatever had been made out why the Govern­
ment should grant land to Messrs. \Vildash and 
Hutchison. On the other hand, if the principle 
was allowed, the House would be deluged with 
claims of the kind ; an cl he knew plenty of 
cases where the claims were a gr~'tt deal better 
in principle, and where a good deal more harm 
had been done to the squatter than by the 
establishment of an agricultural reserve. The 
only thing that gave point to the claim were 
the misfortunes of Mr. Wildash and his family. 
He felt sorry that it was his duty to oppose the 
claim, but he could not conscientiously do any­
thing else. Mr. \Vildash had been a mm;t 
enterprising colonist, and no one would rejoice 
more than himself to see him in a better position; 
but he could not assist him to get into a better 
position by 'tOting for a resolution of that sort. 
He would again say that he had spoken entirely 
for himself, and not for the Government, who 
had never had the matter under their considera­
tion. 

Mr. MoLEAN said the hon. member (::Hr. 
O'Sullivan) had not done himself justice in re­
gretting that the resolution had been placed in 
his hands, for there was not an hon. member in 
the House more competent to deal with a matter 
of that kind, or whose eloquence was more per­
suasive. The hon. member alluded to the hon. 
member who had charge of it last year; but he 
{Mr. McLean) believed that had it on that occa­
sion been in the hands of the hon. member for 
Stanley, it would not have been here this year. As 
to the motion being brought forward on a Friday 
morning, that was the hon. gentleman's own 
choice, and he had also secured that it should be 
the first business on the paper. He (Mr. McLean) 
was one of those who sat on the Select Com­
mittee last year, and at one time his sympathies 
were to a considerable extent with Mr. Wildash; 
but the information he subsequently obtained led 
him to somewhat change his views on the ques­
tion. He wished to call attention to a paragraph 
in the case prepared by Mr. Malbon Thompson, 
who was Minister for Lands at the time. It 
was far better to deal with the facts as they took 
place than to let their sympathies lead them 
away from the justice of the case. The Premier 
had been very lenient in his remarks. He said 
that a l01,rge quantity of the land fell into the 
hands of Mr. \Vildash. The process by which 
that land fell into his hands was very briefly 
wmmed up by 11r. Thompson in his statement 
as follows :-

"It is submitted that the facts disclose a scheme or 
conspiracy to obtain country in exce-ss of the quantity 
allowed by law; and as such each and every selection 
so made is a fraud, and as such void." 

He believed that was one of the reasons why the 
deeds were not issued. The Government of the 
day acted with all bona .fides, and if Mr. \Vildash 
parted with his property before the case of 
Davenport v. the Queen was settled, he did not 
think the House should be made responsible. 
He (:Mr. 11cLean) was at one time in favour of 
some recompense being made to those two young 
men, for it was plainly shown in the evidence 
that they were misled, and lost their money, 
but he did not think the House should grant 
them the full amount they had invested in 
the property. They went into it as a matter 
of speculation, and to make a profit out of 
it, and even if the claim was made out, it 
was hardly likely the House would grant 
the number of acres asked for. The hon. mem­
ber for Rosewood, in submitting the report last 
year, left the number of acres blank, and it was 
probable that if the report had been considered 
by the House the blank would have been filled 
up, though nut with the number of acres now 
proposed. After the conclusive speech of the 
P1·emier there was little need for him to say 

much more on the subject. That it was a hard 
case, nobody would deny ; but there were hun­
dreds of hard cases in the colony of men who had 
been deprived of their runs through the action of 
the Govemment. There was no doubt that the 
Government of the day acted in perfect good 
bith towards Mr. Wildash. Thn,t Mr. Wildash 
was promised a renewal of his lease he fully be­
lieved; but there was a change of Government, 
and it was found neces•ttrY to proclaim Canning 
Downs an agricultural reserve. Mr. \Vildash 
was not :1 young man when he went into the 
speculation, and he ought to have seen that 
everything was secure before investing his 
money. Had he done so the case would never have 
come before the House. If he had waited a little 
longer, instead of acting on the mere statement of 
the Commissioner that the lease would be renewed, 
he would have acted more like a business man. 
A great injustice had, perhaps, been done; but, if 
so, it had been done in the interests of the com­
munity. The exigencies of the State demanded 
that land should be thrown open, and the 
Canning Downs Run was accordingly thrown 
open to selection ; a great part of it, which had 
been dummied, falling, according to the state­
ment of J\Ir. J\Ialbon Thompson, into the hands 
of the lessee. 1.1 nder the circumstances, he 
thought that a greater injustice would be com­
mitted against the colony if Messrs. Wildash am! 
Hutchison were compensated for the money they 
had invested in the Canning Downs estate. 

Mr. SCOTT said a great deal had been said 
that he did not wish to repeat, and he should 
content himself with a few remarks. It ap­
peared th<tt l\Ir. \Vildash, on the faith of the 
Government, purchased the Canning Downs 
estate, and on the faith of a promise that his 
lease would be renewed he did not exercise his 
pre-emptive right as he might have done. Sud; 
clenly, without notice, the htnd was thrown open 
to selection, and he was deprived of the pre­
emptive rights which he had previously possessed. 
He did not know whether the Government were 
very much to blame for that, if, as had been 
urged, the land was thrown open in the interests 
of the community. But after that land had 
been thrown open a great deal of it-by what 
process he did not know and did not care­
came into the hands of \Vildash and Hutchi­
son; and the Government of the day refused to 
issue grante for that land, though at the same 
time and under similar circumst<tnces they were 
issuing deeds of grant to other people. If hon. 
members would turn to the evidence of 1:Ir. 
Gregory, the ex-Surveyor-General of the colony, 
they would see that that gentleman stated that 
at the time these deeds were being refused to 
Messrs. Wildash and Hutchison, others under 
similar circumstances in the Moreton district 
and a few in the Darling Downs district were 
being issued. The great point urged by the 
Premier wtts that the Government had not acted 
unfairly in refusing those deeds. 

The PRKi'lfiER: I said there was no evi­
dence here to show that the Government did not 
act fairly. 

Mr. SCOTT said he differed from the hon. 
gentleman there, because he thought there was 
evidence to show distinctly that the Government 
did <tct unfairly, because they issued grants to 
one class of men and refused them to another. 
Th<tt was the whole gist of the matter, and for 
that reason he thought these gentlemen were 
entitled to compensation. 

Mr. DE SATGE said he differed from both 
the Premier and the hon. member for the Logan, 
who stated that the consequence of this grant 
being allowed would be that the House would 
be fiooded with similar requests. This ap· 
pearecl to him to be a very exceptional case, 
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and he hoped, for the credit of the colony 
and the administration of the land laws, that 
such a case would never appear on the records 
of the House again. The evidence savoured 
very much of the washing of family linen, 
which should be done at home ; and no good 
could result from the publication of such evi­
dence outside the colony. Ko doubt unfortu­
nate mistakes had been made in the pa,t, and 
thi~< case appeared to him to be founded upon a 
gross breach of faith on the part of a Minister. 
\Vho was the individual whom an invester coming 
to this colony should consult but the Minister for 
Lands for the time being~a gentleman who was 
bound to give the straightest and truest informa­
tion with regard to the land laws of the colony? 
Mr. \Vildash appeared to have gone to the Minis­
ter for Lands to obtain from him, in his capacity 
as :Minister, information with regard to a pro­
posed investment by him of a considerable sum 
of money. Mr. \Vildash asked whether he 
would be granted a renewal of the lease ~tbout 
to expire under the Act of 1863, and he re­
ceived the assurance of the :Minister that he 
would. The circumstances of the case were 
exceptional in the fact that this lease comprised 
2ii0 sr[uare miles, m the entire leasehold portion of 
the Canning DownH Run, and that the whole of it 
was thrown open at the snme time as an agricul­
tural reserve ; so that the lessee had not the 
slightest chance of making any profit by the lease 
which he had so recently purchased. The very 
worst feature in the case, :1s showing the bad 
administration at the time, was that the whole 
250 square miles being thrown open in that way, 
the lessee was dri,en, in orderto protect himself, 
to apply for and get the land by fraud. The 
evidence of Mr. Gregory on this point was as 
follows:~ 

"How long did the 1najority of those selectors remain 
on their selections? They did not go on the selections 
because residence 'vas not re4_nired. 

"Do you know whether most of tho.s.e selections were 
purchased by ~Ir. Wildash? I think he purchased the 
greab::r part of the selections that were taken up on 
Canning DO'\\"TTS; but no tall, because I kno'Y others were 
held by different parties. 

"Ilacl the conditions been complied. with at the time 
that he purchased them r Xo; they had not. 

"Did he fulfil the conditions? K o. 
"Then, after he became the purchaser, he ha(l no 

more clain1 upon the deeds than the previous owner? 
No. He simply became the transfelTee of the original 
parties ; but the transfers were made 'vith the sanction 
and approval of the )linister in the required form ;-not 
private transfers; but they 'vere oflicially recm·clc<l 
transfers, antl subject to the approval of the )Iinister, 
and were so approvetl. 

'·By Mr. :lfacalister? By the Minister for the time 
being, as the transfers took place. 

"Yet the :Minister refused to issue the deeds of lands, 
the transfer from one owner to another of which he hatl 
previously %-auctioned? Yes; sanctioned. 

"Then he actually sanctioned the transfer of land to 
which there was no title ? To which he had refused to 
admit a title." 

That was, he believed, the worst piece of 
evidence extant on the records of the N>lony. 
The effect of the proclamation was to force this 
land by fraud into the large estate held by those 
who had been so lucky a" to purchase from the 
mortgagees of Me•srs. \Vildash and Hutchison. 
The decision of the Committee should have 
some weight with the House" The House had 
assented to the formation of that Committee, 
the excellence of which could not he disputed; 
and if they appointed a Committee they must 
go to some extent by its deliberate report. To 
refuse the claim, as suggested by the Premier 
and some other hon. members, would be to 
go directly against the report. The decision 
of the Committee was distinct without wn,ver­
ing or doubt, and the hon. member who 
introduced the motion had shown that from 
first to last a claim was established by Mr. 

\Vildash, at all events, for the amount of cash 
in vested by his sons on the distinct promise 
of the Minister for Lands. There should be 
in all Governments a certain amount of esprit 
de C01'PS which should lead them to give to the 
word of their predecessors as much weight as 
they possibly could. ~'1.. Minister of the Crown 
did not give an opinion or a promise except after 
consideration of some sort, and in this case the 
promise had been most deliberately given. The 
inve,tment was made on the strength of that 
promise, and the House ought to back up the 
Acts of the Government, especially in a case so 
perfectly exceptional. l'\ o other case had oc­
curred in which a whole run had been suddenly 
resumed and disposed of as that was. The land 
ought to have been mn1med gradually, and not 
forced into one channel for the benefit of the 
capitalists as that was. 'l'he whole thing was 
monstrous ; the :Minister for Lands seemed to 
ha,·e been acting under a sudden fright, or to 
have had some lJolitical pressure put upon him 
to induce him to resume the whole land at once 
instead of selling gradually to great advantage. 
Both the country and the le~sees had been very 
badly served indeed. He should vote for the 
motion. 

::\Ir. GRIMES said he could not promise the 
hon. member his vote. This House appeared to 
be fast becoming a poor relief board. Nearly 
every session since he had sat in the House 
three or four or more motions for grants for the 
relief of persons under suppused injury or griev­
ance had come before the House. This session 
there were no le,Rs than six such motions on the 
business paper. The hon. member for Stanley 
(Mr. O'Sullivan) had this one, the hon. member 
for Gympie had another, the hon. member for 
Ea"sifern (Mr. Persse) had one for the general 
relief of selectors, there was another in the name 
of the hon. member for South Brisbane (Mr. 
Kingsford), and another in the name of the 
hon. member for Toowoomba (Mr. Groom). 
\Vhere was to he the end of that kind of thing? 
If it was not checked the whole revenue almost 
would presently have to be paid in compensation 
for the losses of individuals through had legisla­
tion in the past. In his opinion no good claim 
had been made out by the hon. member. The 
Government of the day, he thought, were quite 
right in refusing to grant these deeds; as there 
was no doubt that Mr. \Vildash dummied those 
lands, and had no intention of fulfilling the con­
ditions required by the Act. \Vhat could be said 
with reference to such evidence as was contained in 
the statement of Mr. J. 1I. Thompson, who said 

"It is submitted that the facts disclose a scheme or 
conspiracy to obtain country in excess of the quantity 
allowed by law; and, as such, each and every selection 
so made is a fraud, and, as usual, void." 

And he went on ,to say~ 
•• The dealings of the plaintiff, and those from whmn 

he derives title, are a conspiracy in fraud of the pro~ 
visions of the Act in regard to quantity, and the rules 
of the Stu•veyor-General's office in regard to frontage." 

And the statement further said that no culti va­
tion 'vhatever had been carried on. The person 
who made this claim did not deny that he had 
dummied the land, but he maintained that it was 
not wrong to dummy. This was shown by a 
letter written by Mr. \Vildash to one of the 
newspapers, and contained in appendix D of the 
report, in which Mr. \Vildash said~ 

ur have yet to learn that there is anything morally 
wrong in a perRon having the means of acquiring land 
doing so, notwithstanding laws passed hedging around 
the mode of acq11isition ''i.th all sorts of obstacles and 
restrictions.'' 
Mr. Wildash, therefore, not only dummied a lot 
of land, but he had the barefacedness to publicly 
avow that he could not see there was any harm 
in doing so. The Government would certainly 
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be doing very wrong if they granted 30,000 ncres 
of land to a person who, in his great greed to 
obtain a large estate, had over-stepped the nmrk 
and become insolvent. \Vhy should the Govern­
ment give this land twice over? The deeds were 
issued afterwards to those who had a right to 
them-the creditors in th<> estate ; and now the 
House was called upon to issue deecls for a further 
30,000 acres, because Mr. \Vildash felt he ought 
to have a portion of that land as well as his 
creditors. The hon. member for }Iitchell sup­
ported the claim on the ground of the information 
given by the Minister ; hnt if that were to he 
regarded as sufficient ground, numbers of other 
persons could come forward and make out as good 
a case. A number of persons anxious to invest 
money in the selection of lands in the North had 
recently come up from the other colonie6, but in 
the meantime the Minister for Lands had with­
drawn all those lands from selection. Those 
people might come forward with a very good tale 
of how much money they might have made if 
the Minister had not with<lrawn those lands 
from selection ; and if such claims were allowed 
in one case they would have to be allowed in others. 
1'he hon. the Premier stated that there was no 
proof that the Government lmd acted wrongly ; 
but, on the contrary, there was evidence to prove 
that they acted quite right in refusing these 
deeds, and they would have betrayed the trust 
placed in their hands as the Government of the 
day if they had granted the deeds when they 
knew that the lands had been dummied and 
that the conditions imposed had not been ful­
filled. He should vote against the motion. 

Mr. KELLETT said that the hon. member 
opposite had commenced by stating that he con­
sidered that the matter was one for a poor relief 
board. 

Mr. GRIMES: No; I did not. 
Mr. KELLETT took it that it was nothing of 

the kind. 
Mr. GRIMES: I said that the House had 

become a poor relief board. 
Mr. KELLETT said that was the statement 

of the hon. member; but he took it that Messrs. 
\Vildash and Hutchison had sent their case be­
fore the House because they considered it the 
great equity court of the colony, and that this 
was one of those cases which could only be con­
sidered and relief granted in an equity court. 
His reason for stating this wa,; better than a 
mere statement of his own. In the appendix to 
the report of this inquiry there was a state­
ment with the signature "J ames Cockle, Chief 
Justice," attached to it, in which he stated:-

" In pursuance of the third section of the Act 29 
Vie., ~o. 23, I hereby certify that the statements con­
tail1ed in the within written petition disclose a pJ•inu1 
facie case for inquiry in a court of equity." 

That was what he (Mr. Kellett) based his state­
ment on, and he considered that Mr. \Vild­
ash had sent his case before the true equity 
court of the colony. In listening to the state­
ment made by Mr. Mcllwraith, the Premier, 
they could see that . the hon. gentleman's heart 
was not thoroughly m the matter. If the hon. 
gentleman had to argue the case on the other 
side, he (Mr. Kellett) would have listened to 
him with great satisfaction; but they knew that, 
as the Treasurer of the colony, he had to look 
upon such matters in a different light from other 
members of the House. He had no doubt that 
the hon. gentleman was arguing conscientiously 
from a Treasury point of view, but there were 
some cases in which they must go a little apart 
from those strict rules. As had been pointed out 
by the hon. member, Mr. Scott, there was abun­
dant evidence in the report that the Government 
had done wrong, for at the very time the 
deeds were refused they had at" the same time 

been granted to other parties. He held that the 
Government did a wrong and a great injustice 
to one man when they treated 'mother in an 
entirely different manner to him. As to the pro­
>nise made, it was not made by the Commissioner, 
as had been stated there several times during 
the morning, but by the ),Iinister of the day to 
Mr. \Vildash. That was a higher authority 
altogether than a commissioner. The 11inister 
of the day made a promise that such and such 
a thing would take place. He (Mr. Kellett) 
did not say for one moment that such a 
promise was binding for ever, but he asserted 
that it tended to show that there was the 
greater grievance. The real grievance ·was 
that the deeds were refused to Mr. \Vildash 
after the transfers to other persons had been 
approved of by the then :Minister for Lands. 
The transfers were approved of, and everything 
was done satisfactorily ; but when it came to the 
granting of the deeds to Mr. \Yilclash the stopper 
was put on and he was refused. There was where 
the real grievance caine in. He held that the 
Government of the country occupied such a posi­
tion that if in any case they could see and con­
sider that a wrong had been done by "'ny 
previous Ministry-and a great wrong had been 
done here-it was their duty as a Ministry to see 
that the wrong was in some way rectified, if it 
was possible to do so. He did not think it \Vas 
a question of sympathy at all. He was not 
asking for sympathy for Mr. Wildash, who, 
though an old man, was still active and able to 
get his own living. But he believed that a great 
wrong and injustice had been done to the man, and 
that a special case was made out in his favour. 
The h<m. member for Logan had made a good 
deal out of the statement of :Mr. Thompson 
-the MiniBterfor Lands. Now, 1\Ir. Thompson 
might have been a very able Minister. Some 
thought that he was, and others differed from 
that opinion; but a higher authority and much 
abler parties had given a contrary opinion to his, 
and that was the Privy Council of England. Able 
as Mr. Thompson might be in the estimation 
of the h<m. member for Logan, it threw him 
entirely in the shade when they considered the 
partins it had been put before afterwards, and 
the contrary decision which was given to his. 
He (Mr. Kellett) had very little more to say, 
except that he hoped that the Government and 
the House \Vould consider that this was a ques­
tion which had been talked about all over the 
Australian colonie"cs, and which had been written 
about in all the papers. The feeling of surprise 
was very strong that in such a young colony as 
Queensland such a thing should have happened 
and that no redress had been allowed afterwards. 
There was no Minister who was not liable 
to make some mistakes, and it was to be hoped 
that in this colony-where men were coming in 
from all sides, and which was supposed to be the 
rising colony of the group-a grievance like this 
would be redressed immediately, to let capitalists 
know that, if by chance any wrong was done, 
the Government of the colony and members of 
that House were always ready when the wrong 
was pointed out to them to try and alter it and 
to redress the grievance. The creation of such 
an impression would, he supposed, be of more 
'tdvantage to them and to the country than the 
mere granting of 30,000 acres of land to Messrs. 
Wildash and Hutchison. In alluding to this 
matter from a Treasury point of view as the 
Colonial Treasurer had done, he would say that 
he thought the grant could be very easily made 
in the very outside part of the colony-as far 
as the Gulf of Carpentaria-and land in that 
neighbourhood would be very willingly accepted 
by the petitioners if the grant was made there, 
and to send such a man and his two stepsons to 

I ' that part of the country would be a benefit to the 
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country. So he (l\Ir. Kcllctt) thought that even 
fro:n the Treasury point of view the matter was 
eaJ.'lly settled. 

:rhe ~II::'\ISTim ]<'OR LA::'\ DS (::\Ir. Perkins) 
smd that the hon. gentleman seemed to att>tcf1 
a good deal of importance to the promise 
m~de by the l\Iinister for Lands, :!\Ir. Mac­
ahster; but he must alw consider that a man 
going- to bny a rnn would fonn his O\Vn opinion 
and calculations, apart altogether from any 
Htc:tement mltde by a Minister. He did not 
tlunk, therefore, that l\lr. \Vildash was at 
all misled by anything that was said to him. 
1-IrP: would assume, in self-defence, that ::\Ir. 
\v 1ldash prol""'.ed, in every way properly, to 
~~bey the Ia:v 111 sez:uring thi~ land. No\\~, 
It \Vas notorious that there \Vas no ncces~itv 
!m· thmwing- open such a vltst r1uantity of lane! 
m the neighbourhood of \V arwick, because there 
"~ere not enough per:-5ons there to occupY it. 
'What followed was the inevitable result of-such 
n. course of conduct. In his opinion, the case \Vas 
narrowed down to this : Huppll.<C that at the 
present day the Lands Department were well 
a war., that a selector had evaded the law, and the 
department intended to forfeit his selection and 
to drive the man off the htnd, but never­
thele;;s this selectnr had transaction~ of a mone­
o<Lry nature with other perwns who were willin" 
to take the lea8e of hiK Belection '"" secnrit,? 
that transfer Bhould not be passed thrmwh wit!; 
~he sanction of the department. If the J\Iin­
lster for Lands were well aware that the selection 
waK obtained by franc!, <Lnd consented to the 
tmnsfer, what wonlrl he thonght of it by the 
members of the Hrmse and lJV the country ? 

The transaction would not hc>l<l water anci 
would simply encourage the repetition ~f the 
same thing in other instanC''"'· He had stated 
before in the House that he did not think 
that in such cases the balance of money shonld 
be taken from the selector. \\'here the inten­
tion was to withhold the deeds, the depart­
ment had no right to accept the balance of 
the purchase money. He ditl not think that 
su?h a transltct~.m would hold good between 
pnvate persons, and he did not see at all whv 
it sJ:ould be any better between the State ancl 
a. pr1vate individual. Supposing a private indi­
Vldual sold a property to <Lnother under certain 
con~litions ,,~ith regard to in1provenwntB. Bup- · 
posmg also that the purchaser neglected to fulfil 
the conditions, and the vendor was aware of that 
and said nothing. Supposing the vendor made 
no complaint, hut allowed the purchaser to come 
<Lnd pay the last instalment of the purchase 
m?ney, and then turned round suddenly and 
sard that as he had not put up the rer1uired 
stable and other conditional improvements he 
-the vendor-would stick to the property and 
also to the monev. i:lurely such a man would 
be pronounced a rascal of the first water. It 
was not necessary to go into the legal aspect 
of the affair. That had been decided by 
another tribunal. He believed, however that 
Mr. \Vildash could have sold the prope~-tv at 
the time but for the risk there was con­
nected with it, and he had no doubt that he 
had lost by the tmnsaction. He did not like to 
do anything that would ca~1se every p81·son who 
was unfortunate to come ~o. the House for help; 
but ~e could not help arnvmg <Lt the conclusion 
that 1f a wrong had been done by the i:ltate there 
was no other tribunal to appeal to. As to the 
ammmt of compensation he had not made up his 
mind, or as to whether it should be land or cash. 
If the mover of this resolution would alter it to a 
leBoer s~1!1-he (Mr. Perkins) was only giying his 
own opmwn, as the matter had not been rlrscussed 
by the Cabinet-or if the hon. gentleman would 
reduce the number of <Lcres, he should h<Lve his 
C~Ir. Perkim') support. 

Mr. GROO::\I said that he had an intimate 
aCl[lHtintauce with all the bets of this case, having 
been in the House in 1870 when the matter \nts 
brought very prominently under the notice of the 
I..~egi~·5lature. Xo,v, after an interntl of eleven 
years, they could look at these things more calmlv 
than they could do in those days, and they woulcl 
he able to give a better opinion upon the subject. 
He stated a few evenings previously what he now 
repeated. Had they known in 18G5-when the 
l\linistry of the day, of which he believed the 
present Colonial Secretary (Sir Arthur Palmer) 
was a member--the Minister for L<Lnds being ::\lr. 
Lamb-proclaimed the Darling Downs one vast 
agricultural reserve, in which anyone could go 
and take up any area up to G40 acres ;-had 
they then known the extent of the \V estern 
country they would not have resorted to such 
means. It was not confined to one parti­
cular locality, but the whole of the Darling 
Downs-from one end of it to the other-was pro­
clairnecl an agricultural reserve, and partimn\'ent 
in whole~ale to take up what they could get. 
It \\-as a sort of scramble; and it was perfectly 
notorious that at that time some of the pro­
lJrietors went out, accompanied by a magistrate, 
to shepherds and hut-keepers with blank forms 
which they got the,e people to sign, leaving 
the body to be filled up afterwards by them­
selvPs as occasion might require. That had 
been adduced in evidence before a select com­
mittee of the House. \Vh<Lt happened sixteen 
Y~'"r' ago could not, of course, affect legislation 
that might take place now. Such things were ll'>t 
likely to occur again in tlw altered condition of 
the colony. There was not likely to be weh 
a :-;crmnble again on the J)arling Do\VllS to get 
water frontages. He (Mr. (;room) could very \Yell 
understand that ::\lr. \Vildash was misled by the 
gentleman he said he \vas misled by when he con­
templated the purchase of the Canning Downs. 
The evidence stated that Mr. \Vildash called on 
Mr. 2\Iacalister, who was then the Minister for 
Lands, and he (Mr. Groom) could very well 
understand how any person could be misled by 
that gentleman, who, as was well known, unfor­
tunately could not say "~o." It had become 
historical that deputations waited upon him, and 
went out of his presence just as wise as the~­
entered it, so far as any information he could 
give them was concerned. He could quite under­
stand how Mr. \Vilrlash could be misled by such 
a man. The question, however, was whether 
the House was to give compensation for mistake" 
which might have arisen at that time. He \Yas 
inclined to take this view of the case. There 
could be no doubt about the decisions of 
the Privy Council in the cases of Daven­
port and Smith being founded entirely f>ll 

the evidence of the Hon. ,J ames Taylor, th<' 
:Minister for Lands who received the rents; 
and when he was called on to say why he did so 
he stated that he received them because the 
exigencies of the Treasury demanded that he 
should do so, and for no other reason. The late 
Mr. Davenport told him (Mr. Groom) that when 
.l\Ir. Tayl,,r's evidence was read out before the 
Privy Council their lawyers were staggered, and 
turned round to JYir. Benjamin, who appear<•d 
for l\Ir. 1Jltvenport, and said, "You don't mean 
to tell us that the Government absolutely took 
the m<Ln's money, and then refused the lan<l ~·· 
:Yir. Benjamin replied, "Ye,, that is pre­
cisely my case." So that the facts relating 
to JYir. Davenport's case were parallel to 
those of Mr. vVild<Lsh's case- he paid the 
rents regularly, and they were received. It was 
true that a case was prepared by the Hon. J. l\1. 
Thompson; and hon. members who knew any­
thing about that verind knew perfectly well htJW 
it was prepared. l\Ir. ,J. l\I. Thompson was a 
C'ons.cicntion:-> 1nnn, fmjoying a, YC'l';\y high opiniou; 
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and hi~ words would be entitled to respect in any 
part of the colony. But it was an understood 
thing with l\Ir. Wildash, when he made the 
application, that there "hould be entered a 
friendly suit. The suit of l\Iactlonell 7'. Tully 
was on the recortls of the House aml of the 
Supreme Court. It \Yas supposed to be a test 
case, and was prepared by the then l\ Iinih ter 
for Lands (::\fr. 'l'hompstm) and the late Attorney· 
(;eneral (J\Ir. ,John Bmmston). After the case of 
l\Iaedouell 7'. Tully was brought on, the Attor­
ney -General was called on to file his pleas in 
rejoinrler; and they were simply that he had 
oppoRt'< l the i:;sning of the deeds to JYiacdonell 
and f-huith as the nwrtgugees of }f. ~T. C. \Vildash, 
l>ecause they had been obtained by fraud and 
perjury. By some means or other a letter was 
produced by a late member for East l\Ioreton, in 
which the solicitors of the plaintiff J\Iacdonell 
told him what were the pleas filed, and recom­
mended him not to make further application ; 
and no further application in that suit was made. 
As far as :\Ir. Thompson's case was concerned, 
it was borne out by the Attorney-General of the 
day, and all further action was stayerl. Looking 
back on those events, and considering that the 
partie" in connection with dummying had received 
their deeds in every instance, this unfortunate 
man, l\Ir. \Vildash, stood out prominently as a 
man absolutelv ruined because the deeds were 
not granted. 'That was the strongest point in 
::Vlr. \Vildash's case on which he had a claim on 
the con:;ideration of the House. No doubt, as 
the hon. member for Logan said, if this case 
were considered favourably, others might come 
forward. But each case would hm·e to be rlecided 
on its merits, and they sh,)uld not reject a case 
simply because others would follow. There was 
another fact which influenced him in this case. 
There could be no rlonbt that Mr. \Vildash in­
duced his two stepsons to invest a large amount 
of money in the station, with a tacit under­
standing that the deeds for 20,000 acres would 
be obtained. l~nder that representation, and 
the belief that the property would ultimately 
be of great value, they inve:;ted the money. 
They were foreclosed on not long afterwards, 
and the property passed out of their hands. It 
came to this: if they took the balance-sheet ap­
pended to the report and contrasted the amount 
of debt owed by l\Ir. \Vildash with the amount 
which could be realised on 20,000 acres at £2 5s. 
an acre, they would find that he would haYe 
been in a position, could he have secured the 
rleeds, to go to any bank in the colony and obtain 
a sufficient advance to enable him to retaiu the 
whole of the property. That was tbe position 
::\Ir. \Vilclash would have been in, and he (:!:\Ir. 
Groom) repeated, looking at the fact in a calm 
manner-not by theligh t of the passions which used 
to influence thmn fifteen or sixteen years ago, \V hen 
dummying was rampant-and considering that 
all the parties who took upland on the Da~ling 
Downs similar to the way in which Mr. \Vildash 
took up his had obtained their deeds and were 
now wealthy men, ::\Ir. \Vildash certainly had a 
claim for consideration. He was acquainted with 
Mr. \Vildash's stepsons, and knew them to be 
persevering, energetic young n1en. The 1neans 
of living had been taken away from them and 
given to men living in Sydney. At the same 
time he would not say that 30,000 acres should be 
given as cmnpensation, because that was a very 
large area. He pre,umed the moYer would have 
to put another amendment to his motion. The 
grant proposed could not be made without a 
special Act of Parliammt. 

Mr. O'SFLLIVAN: Yes; hy the Gth clause 
of the Crown Lands Alienation Act. 

l\Ir. G ROO::\I said he understood the grant 
would be like the 2,000 acres granted for opening 
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up the sugar industry, but he was glad to hear that 
it could be done without a special Act. The hon. 
member, however, must moderate his opinions a 
little. He (::Ylr. Groom) had read the document 
on which the motion was founded very carefully 
through, and he considered that the claim was 
just, because it was clear that the Crown, ~aving 
received the rents, were compelled, accordmg to 
the decision of the Privy Council, to give the 
deeds when the payments were completed. It 
mi"ht appear somewhat strange in him, having 
be;n such a determined opponent of dummyism, 
to opeak as he was now speaking ; but he could 
not shut his eyes to the fact that others had got 
their deeds while Mr. \Vildash had been refused. 
He had no peri!onal interest in the matter; he 
was no friend of Mr. \Vildash, nor was Mr. 
\Vildash a friend of his; but he was quite pre­
pared, conoidering the circumstances '?f the 
ca,,e, and the fact that others had come m and 
reaped where that gentleman had sown, to vote 
for a moderate grant in satisfaction of this 
claim. 

The MINISTER FOR WOUKS (Mr. Mac­
roesan) said he had no sympathy whatever with 
the case Lefore them, and no sympathy what­
e\·er with the class which this Mr. \Vildash repre­
sented. Mr. \Vildash was simply suffering thP. 
consequence:; of having evaded the law, and 
httYing robbed the State of the very best portion 
of its lands in the neighbourhood of Warwick. 
Hutchison and \Vildash had actually strangled 
the town of \V arwick ; and from their action in 
regard to thotm lands had resulted the greatest 
injury of the SQUatters. Mr. \Vildash and a 
dozen more like him on the Darling Downs had 
brought more discredit on the name of squat­
tin~ than all the squatters outside the Darling 
Do~vm put together. \Vhat was the claim 
based on? On the fact that l\Ir. \Vildash had 
been unfortunate. But the misfortune arose 
because l\lr. \Vildash was in debt, and because 
he did not possess any money. It was no use 
arguing that because other men in the same 
position got their deeds because the Privy 
Council had declared they should ;-had l\Ir. 
\Vildash retained his estate, which he could 
and would have done had he not been in debt, 
he would have got his deeds also ;-therefore 
they should pay Mr. \Vildash for having the 
misfortune to be in debt. That was the claim 
as it came before the House ; and it was pre­
posterous. If only one acre we~e asked for, in­
stead of 30,000 acres, he would not vote for 
it ; for if they voted one acre they admitted the 
principle, and it was as bad as voting 30,000 
acres, being only a question of degree. He ~oped 
the House would not consent to the cla1m of 
\Vildash and Hutchison; and he agreed with the 
Premier that if a claim of the sort was once 
admitted they would be inundated with them. 
There was a case rtuoted by the hon. member 
for Oxley, which happened only a few weeks 
""'"· 13y proclamation certain htnds were thrown 
open for selection at a certain price; and he 
(::\Ir. l\Iacrossan), from his own knowledge, knew 
people were actually on their way from the dif­
ferent parts of the colony to select lands under 
the proclamation. They incurred the expense 
of going, and when they got there the land was 
withdrawn; and those people had just as much 
claim as JYir. \Vildash, and far more. 

Mr. HORWITZ said that he would support 
the motion. Though it was well known that the 
way in which these lands had been taken up had 
done 1t great deal of injury to the Darling 
Downs, yet the Government had no right to 
receiYe any rent on account of dummied lands­
except under protest-and then refuse the deeds. 
If \Vildash and Hutchi.;on had got their deeds, 
they could have raised money to pay off their 
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1nortgage, and '\Vouhlnot have been ruined. }"~or 
these reasons he should support the motion. 

The SPEAKElt sai<l that he .ha<! overlooke<l 
the fact that the question could not he put. The 
m<ltion was for a grant of land, and that was the 
Hmne atl a nwtion for a grant of money, \V hi eh 
should be considered in Committee of the \Vhole 
House. The motion should be to go into cmn­
mittee to consider the advisability of making the 
grant. He was sorry he did not notice this be­
fore so much time had been taken up, but the 
objection was fatal. 

:VIr. O'SULLIVAX asked for leave to ameml 
the motion, with a view to bringing it forward 
in committee on the 7th October. 

The SPEAKER asked if the House consented 
to the amendment of the resolution? 

::\Ir. G lUF:FITH said he objected to the Honse 
affirming the principle that 30,000 acres should 
be gr"'nted. 

:VIr. O'SULLIV AX Sl1id he would withdraw 
the 30,000 [tCres from the resolution. \Vould the 
h<m. member object to it then? 

Mr. GRIFFITH s"'id this resolution asked 
the House to affirm the dP,irability of making a 
gmnt of land to Mr. \Vildash. The l]Uestion as 
to whether that gentleman was entitled to anv 
land should be discussed in committee. He 
would object to the amendment of the resolution 
in the way proposed. 

The RPEAKIU~, R[tid the amendment of the 
resolution should be th"'t the House should 
resolve itself into a Committee of the \Vhole, 
to consider the resolution. If the House con­
sented to the mnendment of the resolution he 
would take the amendment, but if it was 
objected to it could not be put. Di<l the House 
consent to the question being amended? 

:VIr. O'SFLLIV AX said it was a renmrlmble 
thing that the hon. member for X orth Brislmne 
had thrown himself in the way to prevent the 
resnlutinn being brought before the House. He 
believe<l he (l\Ir. O'Rullimn) lmd a right to 
bring it, but, seeing that there was no other 
course open to him, he would withdmw it. 

:\fr. GRIFFITH saii! that he objected to the 
Hcouse affirming the desimbility of gmnting land 
to :VIr. \Vildash. If the h<m. member really 
wished to go on with the motion he (:Mr. Griffith) 
had no objection to his amending it in such a \my 
that the House would not be asked to affirm the 
desimbility of granting that land. 

Motion withdrmvn. 

SELECTORS llELIEF InLL. 
::\Ir. PERSSE moved for leave to bring in "' 

Bill for the relief of selectors. 
:VIr. l\IcLE) .. X s[tid, if the hon. member wished 

to introduce "' Bill of that kind to the House he 
ought to expl"'in to the House the natnre of the 
Bill. 

The COLOXIAL SECRETAUY said it w"'s 
>thnost impossible to satisfy hon. members oppo­
site. \Vhen he introduced a Bill, and explaine<l 
it on its first reading, they said it was wrong. 
The hon. tnetnber for Fa~sifern w~u:; nwving for 
leave to introduce a Bill, and "' priv"'te member 
was "'l ways "'!!owed to do tlmt as a lll[ttter of 
courtesy. 

Mr. PERSSE said he did not know whether 
there was any necessity for him to speak now as 
to the nature of the Bill itself. It was similar 
to the Bill he brought in last year. 

~Ir. GRIFFITH said the hon. member Wl1S 
bringing in a Bill' dealing with a large quantity 
of public land, at the very end of the session. 
It was "' matter the Uovernment should deal 
with. 

The 1\IIXISTJ.m l<'OR LANDS : Why did 
you not think of that three ye[trs "'go? 

Mr. GRIFFITII said, if the Minister for 
Lm1ds wanted to bring in a Bill to amend the 
ll1nd law, why did he not do so? 

Mr. PERSSJ<~ said th"'t, as there appeared to 
be so much opposition to the Bill, he would with­
draw it. 

The COLOXIAL RECRETARY sl1id it was 
an act of courtesy to "'llow a private member to 
introduce [tny Bill he liked. They h"'<l "'llowe<l 
the hrm. member for Log"'n to introduce a Bill 
which they never had the slightest intention of 
carrying, year after year; and it waf; very bad 
t"'ste of that hon. member to object to the intro­
duction of this Dill. 

Mr. ::\IcLl<~"\X said he did not object to the 
introduction of the Bill; he simply wm1ted to 
know wlmt the nature of it was. He hl1d no 
intention of obHtructing· the hon. member, but a 
few words from him would h"'ve put the nmtter 
right and would lmve removed his objections. 

The COLOXIAL SECRETARY: This is 
the second time the hon. member h"'s spoken on 
the motion. 

The SPEAKER: The House lms not decided 
yet whether the motion shall be withdrawn. 
There being no objection, the motion is with· 
dr"'wn. 

:\fr. KELLETT said he had objecte<l to the 
withdmwal of the motion. 

The SPl<JAKEH : I did not hem· the ,hon. 
member say so. 

Mr. KELLETT Sl1id the hon. member sitting 
next to him heard him. He lmd stood up two or 
three times, but sat down in deference to the 
Chair. He did not spoak in very a mild tone of 
voice, but the businf",%s semned to be going on in fL 

very Htrange way. Son1e IneinberH "~ere not 
heard, and Hon1e n1en1bers were. 

The SPEAKER sttid th"'t when the motion for 
withdrawal W[ts put, if "'ny hon. member wished 
to object, he should h"'ve done so at the time. 
He put the question very plainly, and he did not 
hear [tny hon. member object. 

OPEXIXG OF THJ<J ::\fl..Sl<JF::\1 O:>f 
SUXDAYS. 

Mr. KIXGSFORD, in moving-
rrhat, in the opinion oE the IIon~P. it is dc-~irable to 

throw open to the pnhlie the Hrbhane ::\In~emn on 
~mHl.ays, between the hours of 1 o'clock p.m. and G 
o'clock p.m.~ 

s"'id it would be pretty plain, to all who had 
t"'ken the trouble to ob,;erve, tlmt there were 
gre>Lt numbers of people in 13risbane, as well as 
else\rhere-perhaps he woultl not be very far 
wide of the mark if he said the larger proportion 
of the population-for whom no provision \Vas 
made on what was termed bv those who were 
the opponents of this nwtimi the Lord's Da~-, 
or what W[tS more popubrly termed Sunday, in 
regard to religion~ e(lucation. .Anyone going 
round the city on Hnntlay woulLl :-;ee great nnni­
bers of people of all "'ges and of "'ll classes who 
were evidently without occupation or "'nything 
to improve their minds ; and he thought it 
was the duty of the House, if not to provide 
the instruction itsr'lf, at least to remove ttll the 
obstacles sbnding in the way of such people 
obtaining neceHsary knowledge. He did nnt in­
tend to c"'st reflections upon those whose eslJecial 
lmsiness it W[tS to "'ttend to the higher instruction 
of the people on Sunday ; hut he stated plainly 
that the appliances that were used by the V[trious 
religious bodies on Sunday were altogether i:n­
ade<juate to meet the necessities of the people. 
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l~ither there was :111 unwillingnes,; or an inubility 
to cope with the needs of the people ; but in 
either case it wu,; :1 fuct thut the meuns employed 
for the instruction of the people in religious 
mntters were altogether insufficient to meet the 
re<tnirements of the people. He did not know 
whether it was known that the places of worship 
were utterly insufficient to accommodate the 
people ; and it was a well-known fad, also, that 
those who did not frequent places open for 
religi(nu; iiu~truction on Hundu,y " ... ere nn willing 
to do so. He believed it was altogether con­
trary to the principles of religious truth to with­
hold any instruction which the people might 
get if they were afforded an opportunity. And 
although it might be said that nnmeums and 
institutions <·>f a kindred kind were not of a 
di•tinctly religion,; character, yet th6y were so 
far promotive of the moral and intellectual and 
mental advantages of the people that it was a 
sin, in his humble O)Jinion, to restrict the advan­
tagps that were to be derived from the l\Iuseum 
to six days only in the week. It appeared to him 
thttt not only would the OJ Jening of the l\I useum 
on Runday be non-productiYe of evil, but that it 
would result in a very considerable mnount of 
good. It would supplement the efforts put forth 
by the various religious bodies in their attempt 
to elevate the people ttnd mise them in the moral 
and intellectual scale. The opening of the l\I us cum 
on Hunday would not leH<en in the smallest 
degree the attendance at the various religious 
service,; in the city. It would ]>lace no obtitruc­
tion in the way of any. l3nt if the :Uuseum 
was opened it woulrl induce people to attend, 
and by the study of the Yarious objects there 
presented to them woulcl, perhaps, fill up a 
void in :-:;orne n1ind~, and keep out rnischievmu; 
thoughts and intentions from other minds. He 
begged to differ frorn tho::-;e 'vho 'vere taking 
interest in this matter, and had sent in petitions 
to that House to the effect that the opening of the 
l\luseum on Runday would lea<! to :1 profanation 
of that day-would in the slightest degree lessen 
the interest anrl concern that the people fr01n 
ha hit felt towards what was termed the " Racred 
Day." He was sorry to find that the attempt 
to throw open the l\Iuseum to the people on 
Hunday shoulrl be cla&,ed as among those thing:; 
which tended to the demoralisation of the 
people, and to the profanation of the Runday. 
For his own part, he thought that that Yie;v 
of the matter wa:; altogether too conservative 
and too morbid. 'rhe necpssities of the people 
would never be met until every legitimate and 
right appliance was Inade use of for raising thmn 
frotn ignorance and frorn superstition. He \vas 
sorry that the sitting was so f>tr advanced that he 
wtts not able to deal with th_e matter more fully; 
but he was thoroughly convmced thttt as the Sun­
clay was the people's irmlienable, indisputable 
right -their time of rest from the labour and toils 
of the business davs of the week-their season of 
lei-mre; and a~ the J\Iu~mun "~as the people\;, 
bought, ]Jaid for, and maintained by them with 
their _own Inoney, the Governtnent ha.cl no right, 
practlr,ally, to say to the people, "You may go 
to church if you will, for religious instruction on 
the Sunday, but you shall not go to the~Iuseum-­
ynur own place, which belongs to you, and for 
which you have paid." The <>orernment hau no 
right to keep the doors of the ::<.Inseum closed 
on Sunday ; and no Rynod, council, or confer­
ence, mul no ecclesiastic from the highest to 
the lowest, no authority either human or DiYine, 
could be advanced for condemning those whose 
object was to benefit themselves and other~ by 
placing at the disposal of the people educatiomil 
institution,; of this ch<tracter. He was afmid 
he should trespas:; upon the time of the House, 
hut he should just avow his own opinion upon 
the matter in regard to the ccclc,iastical view. 

He said that there was no authority whatever 
for confining the serYice of the Sunday solely 
and exclusively to places of religious worship. 
The opening of the l\Iuseum on :Sunday would 
contravene no Divine law, it would not brettk 
any commandment; it would only be in accord­
ance with the universal practice of the strictest 
of the Sabbatarians-he did not use the term 
offensively-themselves ;-and before these indi­
Yiduals, be they prelates or whatever position 
they might hold, before they took upon them­
selves to condemn others, who attempted to be 
n:;eful in their way according to their lights, 
he would recommend them to take the beam 
out of their own eye, and keep the Sabbath 
a:; they maintained it ought to be kept. He 
had no conscientious scruples in the matter, 
although he had no doubt he should bring down 
a storm of ecclesbstical and pions wrath upon 
his head. In fact, he had already done so; but 
yet he felt that he had done his duty, and he 
should be plettsed, if the House saw fit, as he 
hoped it would, to pass his motion, so that the 
),luseum should be opened on Sunday next for 
the good of the public. 

The l'Il.E),HElt thought this matter was 
more one for the consideration of the trustees 
of the ),fuseum than for Parliament. It was 
not absolutely necessary that it should have the 
sanction of that House. In fact, had he known 
that there had been a recommendation of the 
trustees to open the J\Iuseum on Sundays, he had 
no doubt that the Government would have taken 
action before. On the 18th of April, 1878, the 
:Secretary, on behalf of the Trustees, wrote to the 
late Government as follows:-

"I am now direct.Pd to convey to you the wish of the 
trustees, that the colleetions in the present building muy 
be made aYailable to the public on Sund.ay afternoons. 

"In both these recommendations the trustees arc 
nctnated b\r a d.esire to aiford the most frer1nent oppor­
tnnitie~ to ihose most likely to he availed. of for visiting 
the )lnsenm, bv hundreds· of people whose avocations, 
whether as cler.ks, mechanies, or in other Cl&tpacities, do 
not per111it study or recreation during the ordinary 
lmsiness hours of the day; and the trustees arc impressed 
with the bclief that Sunday afternoon is a time when 
manv hundreds of intelligent visitors, who otherwise 
coul(l clerive no benefit from the in.::;titntion, would be 
found examining its varied contents 'vith pleasure and 
lll'Olit. 

,, rrhe trustees holcling this opinion, desire llle to 
express the hope that the Government will concur in the 
action which they propose to take to give their views 
!Jractical effect.'' 

That recommendation of the trustees to get the 
sanction of the Government to open the l'!Iuseum 
on Sundays was, on the action of the l\Iinister 
to whom it was addressed, brought before the 
C::tbinet, and the result was "no action." That 
was, he ]Jresumed, that the Government were 
not agreed as to what course they should take 
with regard to it. The same recommendation 
would, of course, be brought before the present 
Government, and there was no doubt about 
the action they would take. They would open 
the l\fuseum on Sunday. He was sorry that 
they had not had an opportunity of having the 
matter discussed ; but, at this time of the ses­
sion, he did not think there was the slightest 
chance of it, and therefore it was better to inti­
mate to the House the course the Government 
intended to pursue. If they remembered the 
privileges which they gave others, and which 
were enjoyed by them at the present time, he 
did not think there would be the slightest 
objection to opening the :Yluseum on Sundays. 
It was on his motion that the library of the House 
was opened for the use of members on Sundays, 
and he considered the J\1:nseum quite as much an 
educational institution as their library. Mem­
bers still enjoyed the use of the iibrary on 
Sunday, and certainly what they were prepared 
to give to themselves they could not for a moment 
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think of denying to the people of Brisbane. If 
there \Vas the slightest chance of the nwtion going 
to a divisiun, he should be glad to support it, 
with the approval of the Government. 

The l\1I='i'ISTER ]<'OH WORKS Haid it was 
for him, as ::\Iinister for J\IineH, to give some ex­
planation of the letter which had been quoted by 
the Premier. He was not aw>tn; until yesterday 
that any recommendation of the kind which the 
.Premier had just read existed in the Mines 
Office, and then he became aware of it simply 
from an accident by asking the Under 8ecretary 
if there was anything that could be produced in 
connection with ::\Ir. Kingsford's motion. That 
officer himself, it seemed, was not aware of this 
letter being in existence, and he was told of it by 
one of the clerks in the office. Of course he could 
hardly be expected to be as fully aware of it 
as hb~ predece~sor, having only recently lUHler­
taken the duties of l~nder Secretary. He (Mr. 
Jliiacrossan) might tell the House this: that had 
he been aware at any time ,;ince he had been in 
ofhce as l\Iinister for l\Iines of the exbtence of 
the recommendation of the trustees to open the 
J'duseum on 8unday, he shoultl have brought the 
matter before hi, colleagues with a recommenda­
tion to open it. He believell in opening the 
::Yiusenm and all similar institutionN, for the uHe 
of the working classes, on :Sunday. If they 
chose to go to church, let them do so ; but he 
thought those in authority had no right tu prevent 
thern exercising the intelligence U-od had given 
then1 in exan1ining into Hit-l "~ork:-; in a n1u,seun1 
and everywhere eloe. They must not attempt 
in any way, at this time of day, with the intelli­
gence that was now abroad, to prevent men from 
acquiring kno\vledge in everysh:tJ>e n,nd forin, and 
by every legal means which they could adopt. 
Therefore, he should have great pleasure in bring­
ing the matter before his colleague.s with the very 
strongest recmrnnendation that he coulcl give t~1 
open the Museum on :Sunday. He did not think 
it was a matter for legislation, but one purely of 
administmtion. The Government, if they ac­
cepted his recommendation, as he hoped they 
would, would be resp<msible for their action, and 
it would be then for the House, if they thought 
fit to cen8nre the Ooverntuent for having done 
so, to bring in a motion to that effect. 

l\Ir. GHH'FITH: \Vlmt is the dnte of the 
reconnnendation? 

The ::\IIXISTElt J<'OJt WORKS: The recom­
Inendatiou \Vas nutdo on the 1Hth 1\pril, 1R7K 
just previous to the time when the new l\Iuseun; 
was opened. It was made at the time the hon. 
member for ::\Ioreton wtts ::\[inister for Lands and 
Jliiines, and the memorandum which he wrote­
he believed it was in that gentleman's hand­
writing-was this:-

" rrhe Govprnment will not take any ac:tion upon the 
recommendation of the trustees that the ::uuseum 
shouhl lJe open to the vnlJlic on Sunday:.; .. , 

He presumed the hon. gentleman brought the 
!natter before his colleagues, becau~e " Cabinet " 
was written on the letter in red pencil · and 
that it Wlts considered by the then Govern;nent. 
~ut they di<l not com lenm the recommenda­
tiOn o£ the trustees ; the~· hacl not in any way 
in this document committetl themselves to the 
opinion that they thought it was wrong to open 
the Jliiuseum on Sundavx, or that it would in 
any way injure the morals o£ the people or be 
in any way to the detriment of other people who 
·wished to exerci~e their right in n~ing Bnndav 
in. the way they thought best.. '.rhey simply 
sard that they would not take actiOn. They did 
what he believed was very often clone at that time 
-the matter was ''pigeon-holed." It was by the 
merest accident the matter came to his knowied"e 
yesterday, and he was extremely sorry and rath%r 

annoye<l that he had not known of it before, 
because he had several times made up his mint! 
to consult th<'· trustees upon this very matter ; 
and he did not do so because he was afraid that 
some of the trustees might have very strong 
8abbatarian notions, ftnd he did not wish to bring 
himself into conflict with any of them ; but, if he 
had thought that a majority of the trustees were 
:in favour of the cour.,e proposed, he should cer­
tainly have acted either upon this recommenda­
tion or one sent direct to himself, in the way he 
had informed the House he would have done if he 
hetd the opportunity. This tlocument he found 
did bear evidence that it was brought before the. 
Cabinet, because he found that a minute hatl 
been written on it, which he thoug·ht was written 
yesterday, and which \\"as to this effect-it was 
rna.rked, '" innnediate action":-

''l'rO}lO"-:ll to open ::\ln~emn on Sunday afternoons. 
•· The ~rc'I'darv for )lines submit~ for the ron~idera­

tion of ~Iinbtei·s a lJl'Opo~al by the trm;;tre~ of the 
Qneen::-:land ::\Insenm to make that institution available 
to the tmblic on Sunday afternoon~. 

'"The :\lines Department to be anthorisecl to take the 
necessary action." 

He could see from this that the htm. gentleman 
who was then in charge of the Jlilines Depart­
lnent wa:; at that ti1ne in favour of opening the 
:\luseum on 8unclay; antl he believed he had 
done thn.t g-entlen1an wrong in thinking he \\7 aK 
not in favour of it. 

:\Ir. GHIFFITH: What order "·as made? 
The J\IIXISTJ<~RFOit \VOHKS: "Ko action." 

" Innnedia.te action" \va:; \Vritten in red ink at 
the top of the document, an<l "no action" in 
pencil at the bottom, so that the hem. gentle­
man's good intentions must have been frustrated 
lly so;ne Sabbatarian members of the then 
(j overnrr1ent. 

The HPEAKEJt said that, it being now 1 
o'clock, the House stood adjournetl until the 
nsmtl hour on :\[onday next. 




